ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2011
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 1
"An Act requiring the state Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent to provide an annual report to the |egislature.™

- MOVED CSSB 1(EDC) OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 43

"An Act renam ng the Al aska performance schol arship and relating
to the scholarship and tax credits applicable to contributions
to the schol arship; establishing the Al aska performance
schol arship investnent fund and the Alaska perfornmance
scholarship award fund and relating to the funds; rmaking
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 1

SHORT TITLE. BD OF ED./EARLY DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11
01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2011



01/ 19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

01/ 31/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 31/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 02/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 43

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA PERFORVANCE SCHOLARSHI PS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN
02/ 02/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director

Al aska Commi ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave an overvi ew of SB 43.

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comnmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to the fiscal
note for SB 43.

JOHANNA BALES, Deputy Director

Tax Division

Depart nent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on the education tax
credit for SB 43.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:00: 47 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stevens, French, Davis, Co-Chair Thomas, and
Co- Chair Meyer.

SB 1- BD OF ED./EARLY DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT

8:01: 26 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2011



CO CHAI R MEYER announced the consideration of SB 1 and asked for
a notion to adopt the anendnment discussed in the previous
comm ttee neeting.

8:02: 08 AM
CO CHAI R THOVAS noved to adopt Amendnent 1.
AVENDVENT 1
27-LS000\ A 1
OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR DAVI S
TG SB 1
Page 1, line 6, follow ng "present":

| nsert "in person”
CO CHAI R MEYER obj ected for the purposes of discussion.

CO-CHAIR MEYER noted that Anendnent 1 inserts two words, "in
person”, into the bill.

COCHAIR MEYER renoved his objection. Finding no further
obj ection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

8:03:17 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what the difference is between the report
the bill is demanding and the overviews that the |egislature

al ready receive from each departnent at the beginning of each
sessi on.

SENATOR DAVIS answered that this would be a report from the
Board of Education, rather than the Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnment (DEED).

SENATOR STEVENS said that he thinks this is a great idea. The
conmmttee deals wth the comm ssioner and DEED a lot, but it is
good to have the opportunity to have one face-to-face neeting
with the board each year.

8:04: 40 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS noved to report SB 1( ), version A as anended,
fromthe commttee with individual recommendations and attached
fiscal note(s). There being no objections, CSSB 1(EDC) noved
fromthe Senate Education Standing Comrttee.

8: 05: 06 AM
At ease from8:05 a.m to 8:06 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2011



SB  43- ALASKA PERFORMANCE SCHOLARSHI PS

8: 06: 58 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER announced the consideration of SB 43. He said the
commttee wll hear an overview of the Dbill from the
admnistration. Utinmately, he said, he thinks the conmttee
will want to incorporate a lot of the thoughts and ideas that
the Joint Legislative H gher Education Schol arship Funding Task
Force developed into this bill. Next week the task force wll

del i ver an overvi ew and recommendati ons.

8:08: 30 AM

Dl ANE BARRANS, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE), Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), thanked the co-chairs for taking up SB
43 so quickly. She explained that, as the conmttee is aware, in
the previous year the |egislature passed SB 221 [during the 26th
Legi slature], which put into place a programmtic framework for
Al aska's first nerit-based scholarship program She offered to
walk the conmmttee through either a sectional analysis or
briefly describe what the bill does.

SENATOR FRENCH said it would help him to get a sectional
anal ysi s.

CO- CHAI R MEYER concurr ed.

M5. BARRANS said Section 1 of SB 43 anends the nane of the
schol arship program She explained that subsequent to the
| egi sl ature changing the name to the "Merit Schol arship Progrant
ACPE was notified by the National Scholarship O ganization that
the name "Merit Schol arship” was trademarked. Rather than enter
into a legal battle over the name, the adm nistration proposed
to renane it the "Alaska Performance Scholarship”™ (APS)
Sections 1-6 (pages 1-4) reflect these conform ng changes.

Section 7 changed the existing scholarship statutes. She
explained that it creates an Al aska Performance Schol arship
Award Fund, consisting of appropriations from the investnent

fund, which are referenced subsequently in the bill. The noneys
in this fund are specifically for scholarship awards and are
non- | apsi ng. She explained that the hope is once an

appropriation is made to that fund it could be retained in the
event that there were fluctuations in the nunber of applicants
fromyear to year.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2011



Section 8 was another renamng and conformng change to the
schol ar shi p.

Section 9 was the establishnment of an investnment fund. She noted
that this approach is simlar to what the governor proposed | ast
year. She recapped for the conmttee that, last year, the
| egi slature focused on the structure of the scholarship and
deferred decisions on the funding nmechanism This section also
describes the powers and duties of the comm ssioner of DEED and
allows the comissioner to report on the condition and
i nvestment performance of the fund. It also includes definitions
of "comm ssioner” and "fund."

Section 10 expanded the eligibility for the Al aska education tax
credit, specifically against the corporate incone tax.

Section 11 discussed a sunset scheduled to occur for certain tax
credits and the ceiling for this credit. It also insured that
donati ons made under this provision would still qualify for the
tax credit post-sunset.

Section 12 included a change in the definition section. She
expl ai ned that because the term "progrant has been excised from
the relevant statutes, the definition was no | onger necessary.

Section 13 included transition |language and renanmed the
per f or mance schol ar shi p.

Section 14 instructed the reviser of statutes to change the
titles in order to conformto the name change.

Section 15 included transition |anguage for the authorized
entities to pronulgate regulations in the event that it is
necessary to carry out the changes in the bill.

Sections 16-18 included the effective dates. She noted that the
effective dates take place either imediately or on July 1,
2011; except in reference to section 11

8:15:26 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER expl ained that there will be an overview of the
framework of the scholarship on Friday. He explained that this

bill includes anmendnents that the adm nistration wants done to
this franmework and the conmttee may still adjust sonme of this
framewor k, based on the activities of the task force. She noted
that one area the conmittee will focus, in particular, is the

needs- based schol arship conponent of the program which was not

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2011



addressed in the "skeleton of the bill," passed last year. He
asked if Ms. Barrans wanted to see this included in SB 43.

M5. BARRANS answered that she believes the prograns work well
i ndependently. She explained that there is added conplexity in
bl ending the existing needs-based program [the Al askAdvantage
Progranfj with a new program which deals with such a specific
popul ati on of individuals.

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked if she would like to see the two prograns
tied together or kept separate.

M5. BARRANS replied that in states where there is a blend in the
two prograns and a downturn in state funding has occurred, she
has observed that the nmerit-based programis cut first in order
to keep the needs-based program alive. She explained that the
policy objectives of the two prograns are so distinct that
bl ending the two together would have its drawbacks. She said the
commi ssion is not pronoting that blend at this tine.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said the tax credit passed |ast year had a three-
year sunset. He asked if the commttee should address this.

M5. BARRANS replied that she would defer those questions to the
Department of Revenue's deputy comm ssioner, Jerry Burnett. She
noted that the only tax type that would apply under SB 43 would
be the corporate incone tax.

She continued that while the program structure was put into
place with SB 221, there was a fiscal note adopted with the bil
which reflected the startup and continuation funding from the
state general fund. The governor, in offering this piece of
| egislation, is seeking to advance a discussion on the funding
structure. She explained that the governor strongly believes
that the scholarship is a commtnent to Alaska's students and
establishing long-term self-sufficient funding is critical. She
said that the administration believes that full capitalization
of the APS Award fund this year is the preferred step. Each of
the funding ideas has both nerits and chall enges; however, there
are two specific elenents that the administration strongly urges
be included. First, that the capacity of the funding stream is
sufficient to neet the scholarship commtnents to the recipients
once they have received the initial award. Second, that nopney
once appropriated to the fund is made to be non-1|apsing.

8:22:52 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2011



SENATOR FRENCH asked for confirmation that the conmmttee is
going to get an overview of SB 221 on Friday. He asked M.
Barrans what appropriations for the scholarship fund are in the
governor's budget this year.

M5. BARRANS answered that the governor requested $8.2 mllion
for the conm ssion's budget. She explained that this nunber was
drawn fromthe fiscal note for SB 221

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this amount would be sufficient to fund
the first cohort of students for one or four years.

M5. BARRANS replied one year.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this amount rnust then be multiplied by
four in order to fund for four years.

M5. BARRANS replied no; not specifically. She explained that in
developing the fiscal note the comm ssion also |ooked at the
rate of attrition. ACPE estimated that by year four, with four
full classes of scholarship recipients, the annual cost would be
$20 million.

SENATOR FRENCH asked for confirmation that the governor proposed
$8 mllion.

M5. BARRANS replied that this amount is in ACPE s operating
budget and expected to be expended in a year.

SENATOR FRENCH said he has heard that governor believes a |ong
term funding stream is critical and full capitalization is the
preferred nethod. He asked whether the governor proposed a $400
mllion appropriation to capitalize on this program

M5. BARRANS answered that this is the nunber that has been
di scussed. However, rather than submtting a fiscal note for
that armount, the admnistration submtted an indetermnate
fiscal note. She explained that this way, depending on the
approach the | egislature decides upon, the fiscal note could be
adapt ed.

SENATOR FRENCH said that the answer to his question is the
governor did not propose a $400 mllion appropriation.

MS. BARRANS replied yes.

8:26: 05 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2011



SENATOR STEVENS noted that the governor introduced a nerit-based
schol arship, yet both the House and Senate felt it was inportant
to have a needs-based conponent. He said he understands that it
is easier if the needs-based and nerit-based prograns are not
bl ended, however, the legislature would be quite upset if the
merit-based bill was the only bill signed. He said the commttee
need to know what the admnistration's position is with regard
to including a needs-based program

M5. BARRANS replied that it should be noted that in the
governor's FY2012 request is a GF [general fund] appropriation
of $1.1 mllion for the Al askAdvantage Education Gant. She
asked for clarification he is suggesting the fund be used for
both prograns, rather than one.

SENATOR STEVENS replied that it is something that needs to
consider. He agreed that blending the two mght beconme too
conpl ex.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said |ast year the commttee tried to blend the
two prograns and the fiscal note went from $20 mllion to $40
mllion. He said that to get a bill passed through the
| egislature the programs need to be tied together sonewhat. He
asked for confirmation that the nane change was a copyright
i nfringenment.

M5. BARRANS answered yes.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if she could expand on the copyright
i nfringenent.

M5. BARRANS reminded the conmmttee that in the governor's
original bill the scholarship was |abeled the "Governors
Performance Schol arship”, which the |egislature changed to the
"Alaska Merit Schol arship”. This nane change put them at risk of
infringing on the "National Merit Schol arship”.

CO CHAIR THOVAS said he understands that within the first group
of students there will be individuals who drop out during their
first year. However, he would anticipate by the second year
there would be nore individuals entering the program than
| eavi ng the program he expl ai ned.

M5. BARRANS clarified that the comm ssion expects to see
attrition in the first <class that continues through. She
expl ai ned that the comm ssion does expect to see some growh in
the freshman cohort, but it does not know exactly what to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2011



expect. She reminded the commttee that the comm ssion bench-
mar ked this programw th the programin Wom ng.

CO CHAIR THOWAS asked if that was why ACPE cane up with $20
mllion and when, the needs-based conponent was factored in, it
added $10-20 million nore.

M5. BARRANS answered yes; but there was a specific fornula built
in to addi ng the needs-based program She noted that the needs-
based conponent was solely for individuals who otherw se
qualified for the nerit-based schol arship. She added that one of
the other issues of debate that arose was adding this additional
funding for sonme students.

COCHAIR THOVAS added that the response to non-traditiona
students has remained the sane | ast year.

SENATOR FRENCH asked Ms. Barrans if the comm ssion would neet as
a body to award these schol arships one at a tinme, or in nass.

M5. BARRANS answered that the comm ssion has been working very
closely with DEED and the financial aid community to devel op
what will hopefully be a very efficient application and
di spersal process. She said that the comm ssion is sinply using
the Free Application for Federal Student Ad (FAFSA) as the
application for either the APS or the education grant. At the
same tine, they are getting a "data downl oad" from DEED of al
Al aska high school graduates and the school districts wll
provi de students' eligibility status. This allows students to go
online to see what progran(s) they qualify for. Funds will then
be electronically dispersed directly to the institution on
behal f of the students.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if, for exanple, there are 1,000 qualifying
students and only enough noney to pay for 500 students, how the
comm ssion will deal with this inbal ance.

M5. BARRANS answered that the statute specifies that awards w ||
be made pro rata in the event of a short-funding.

SENATOR FRENCH asked for clarification on whether every student
who qualifies will get sonething, up to the maxi num award. He
said the individual scholarship awards could be very small if
the programis not funded.

M5. BARRANS replied yes; the mninumaward is $500.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2011



CO CHAI R MEYER inquired about the two fiscal notes included with
SB 43, one of which is indeterm nate and the other for $115, 000.

8:37:52 AM

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue, said
the fiscal note for $115,000 could be an indetermnate fisca
note, but it was prepared as if there was a $400 nillion
deposit. He explained that it represents a managenent cost on
the investnent fund of approximately 2.8 basis points.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked if this could easily be changed.

MR. BURNETT answered that it could be an indeterm nate and woul d
vary a little depending on the fund.

SENATOR STEVENS asked M. Burnett to clarify page 5 [lines 17-
21].

MR. BURNETT answered that every year when the Departnent of
Revenue sets the asset allocations it |ooks at the capital
mar ket assunptions, past history, and an assuned rate of
inflation. The department then invests with an asset allocation
whi ch woul d produce five percent, plus inflation.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what the repercussions are if this return
is not achieved.

MR. BURNETT replied that with this type of managenent fund,
which has a payout of five percent of the fund bal ance, any
extra percentage earnings would remain in the fund. During a
year that has a subpar perfornmance, five percent would still be
paid and the funds would be reduced that year. However, over
time, it should be possible to achieve a five percent rate of
return and the fund should grow by the anount approximtely
equal to inflation.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the point of this investnent "is to
snooth things out so that you can count on so nuch noney going
into schol arshi ps. "

MR. BURNETT answered yes. It gives a fairly even payout over
tinme and allows the fund to build. He explained that other funds
that the departnent manages, for exanple the Public School Fund,
have a payout based on realized earnings and does not consider
capital gain. The inconme stream can be highly variable fromthat
type of fund. He explained that the type of investnent suggested
for the scholarship fund is fairly common. The |ower the payout

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2011



is in early years, the nore the fund will grow, however, in
order to achieve sonmething that is even over time, a percent
return rate shoul d be used.

CO- CHAIR MEYER referenced the education tax credit bill passed
|last year that had a three-year sunset and asked if the
Depart ment of Revenue wanted to incorporate this tax credit into
t he schol arship bill and whether the sunset should be renoved.

8:45: 31 AM
JOHANNA BALES, Deputy Director, Tax D vision, Departnent of
Revenue, answered that unfortunately because the education tax

credit did not take effect until 2011 the division will not be
able to determne whether the credit is working until Cctober
2012. She said incorporating the tax credit in this bill 1is

sonet hing that the conm ttee shoul d consi der

CO CHAIR MEYER said he thinks it is an excellent idea to have
corporations help by making contributions to the fund. He asked
if she knew of any corporations interested in participating in
t he program

IVB. BALES answered that there were several i nterested
corporations, specifically Native corporations, which testified
| ast year on behalf of the increase for the education tax
credit.

MR. BURNETT comrented that he received an inquiry this year from
a corporation interested in where it could put its noney and
receive this type of a credit.

M5. BALES added that the credit for the contribution to the
scholarship fund is only allowed against the corporate incone
tax. There are seven other tax types that have an education tax
credit. She suggested that if the conmttee is |looking for nore
i nvestnment from conpanies it would be wise to expand that credit
to all other tax types.

CO CHAI R THOVAS referenced section 17 which states that the tax
credit would not take effect until January 1, 2014. He asked Ms.
Bales to clarify howthis date is tied in to the sunset date.

MS. BALES answered that the education tax credit that was
i ncreased | ast session has a sunset of January 1, 2014. The way
that this bill is constructed would ensure that contributions to
t he education fund would remain intact after the sunset date.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2011



MR. BURNETT explained that Section 10 adds the scholarship
contri butions and Section 11 extends that to the APS.

8:49: 45 AM
CO-CHAIR MEYER noted that Friday the commttee wll hear an
overview of the task force, which wll help the conmmttee

understand how SB 43 and SB 221 blend. He said he personally
supports this idea and hopes a scholarship can be put in place
that is both nerit- and needs-based. He comented that he has
heard from some of the school districts that are unsure whether
the requirements can be nmet. He said it would be good to hear
from the new conm ssioner in regards to this issue at a future
nmeet i ng.

COCHAIR THOVAS noted that there has been discussion on the
Amerada HESS capital inconme fund for the APS. He asked if M.
Barratt knows the balance of this fund and the revenue it spins
of f on an annual basis.

MR. BURNETT answered that he is not sure, but believes it is
roughly $435 nmillion. He explained that the incone from that
fund is being paid into the Alaska Capital |Income Fund, based on
realized earnings and the balance in the capital fund itself is
around $200 million right now. He said he is not sure where it
stands on an accounting basis based on appropriations.

CO-CHAIR MEYER asked if the fund used to kick out about $30
mllion per year.

MR. BURNETT answered that it depends on the earnings of the
Permanent Fund and how those <earnings are calculated. He
continued that in 2008 it was $32 nillion, 2007 it was $42
mllion, and in 2006 it was $36 mllion; in 2009 and 2010 it was
zero.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if the commttee nmenbers had a copy of those
ear ni ngs.

COCHAIR MEYER said he will get everyone a copy. He continued
that the fund was a "pot of noney" that was very attractive
because it could be used for capital projects.

MR. BURNETT replied that for a nunber of years the inconme in the

Amerada HESS Fund went back in as inflation proofing and
additions to the anmobunt in the principal of the Permanent Fund.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2011



CO CHAIR MEYER said one recommendation from the task force was
to use the earnings of that fund, which is about $30 m|lion per
year, for the schol arship program

CO CHAI R MEYER announced he woul d keep public testinony open and
held SB 43 in conmttee.

8: 55: 08 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 8:55 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2011



